ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 13, 2008
1: 08 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 278
"An Act relating to sex offenders and child ki dnappers.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 333
"An Act relating to the reporting of child pornography.™

- MOVED HB 333 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 354

"An Act relating to subsidies for a hard-to-place child;
relating to crimnal sanctions for unlawful disclosure of
confidential information pertaining to a child; relating to
child support orders in child-in-need-of-aid and delinquency
proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 354(JUD) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 278
SHORT TI TLE: SEX OFFENDER/ CHI LD KI DNAPPER REG STRATI ON

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2008



SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) BUCH, DOLL, GRUENBERG

REFERRALS

01/ 04/ 08 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 08
01/ 15/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -

01/ 15/ 08 (H JUD, FIN

03/ 13/ 08 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 333

SHORT TI TLE: COVPUTER PERSONS REPCRT CHI LD PORNOGRAPHY

SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) FAI RCLOUGH

REFERRALS

01/ 18/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
01/ 18/ 08 (H JUuD
03/ 13/ 08 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 354

SHORT Tl TLE: HARD- TO- PLACE CHI LD SUBSI DY/ CHI LD SUPPORT

SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) COGHI LL

REFERRALS

KELLER, GARDNER,

02/ 06/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TIME -
02/ 06/ 08 (H HES, JUD, FIN
02/ 28/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 28/ 08 (H Moved CSHB 354(HES) OQut of Conmittee
02/ 28/ 08 (H M NUTE( HES)
02/ 29/ 08 (H HES RPT CS(HES) NT 7DP
02/ 29/ 08 (H DP; Cl SSNA,
FAl RCLOUGH, SEATON, ROSES, W LSON
03/ 13/ 08 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

LAUREN RI CE, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 278.

KATHRYN MONFREDA, Chi ef

Crimnal Records and ldentification Bureau
D vi sion of Statew de Services

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 278.

PAYTON MEREDI TH, Detective

Fai r banks Pol i ce Departnent (FPD)
Cty of Fairbanks

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2-

March 13, 2008



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 278.

RON Tl DLER, Detective Sergeant

Cyber Crines Unit

Anchor age Police Departnent (APD)

Muni ci pality of Anchorage (MA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 278.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General
Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 278.

ELI ZABETH OUTEN, St af f

to Representative Bob Buch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 278 on behalf of
Representative Buch, one of the joint prime sponsors of the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ANNA FAI RCLOUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke as the sponsor of HB 333; provided a
comment regardi ng HB 278.

RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Deputy Comrander
“A” Detachnent

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers (AST)
Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 333.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 354, on behalf of the
sponsor, Representative Coghill.

JAN RUTHERDALE, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Child Protection Section

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2008



Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 353.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR JAY RAMRAS called the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 1:08:26 PM Representati ves Dahlstrom
Coghill, Holnmes, and Ranras were present at the call to order.
Representative G uenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.
Representatives Sanmuels and Lynn were excused. Representati ve
Dol |l was also in attendance.

HB 278 - SEX OFFENDER/ CHI LD KI DNAPPER REG STRATI ON

1: 09: 43 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 278, "An Act relating to sex offenders and child
ki dnappers. ™

1:10: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM nade a notion to adopt the committee
substitute (CS) for HB 278, Version 25-LS1104\E, Luckhaupt,
2/ 21/08, as the work draft. There being no objection, Version E
was before the commttee.

1:10: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BOB BUCH, Alaska State Legislature, speaking as

one of the joint prime sponsors of HB 278, stated that the bil
woul d require sex offenders register their e-mail addresses and

on-line identifiers. He characterized this bill as a “conmon
sense” bill that wuld wupdate Alaska’s laws to current
t echnol ogy. Currently, sex offenders have access to our hones

via conputers, he stated. He surmi sed that since Al aska has the
hi ghest per <capita use of the Internet, that it places our
children at a greater risk from sexual predators. This bill
woul d provide |aw enforcenent officers with an additional tool
to apprehend sex offenders who nmay be contacting our children
on-1line. He explained that information collected under HB 278
woul d help parents to identify sex offenders who have contacted
their children on-Iline.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH relayed that HB 278 will bring Alaska in
conpliance with the federal Adam Walsh Child Protection and
Safety Act, |egislation which organizes sex offenders into three
tiers, and mandates that Tier 3 offenders, the nbst serious

tier, update their whereabouts every three nonths. He stated
that failure to register and update residential information is
made a felony under the Act. The federal Act also creates a

national sex offender registry and instructs each state and
territory to apply identical criteria for posting offender data
on the Internet. Representative Buch offered that nine other
states have adopted simlar |egislation.

1:12: 19 PM

CHAIR RAMRAS referred to |anguage on page 3, lines 15-19, in
proposed AS 12.63.010(c). He stated that |ast year he attended
a conference and from information gained at that conference was
persuaded that sex offenders would be alienated by the

notification provisions wunder the bill. He opined that
oftentinmes sex offenders are normal people except for a huge
flaw. Thus, any attenpt by the sex offender to “normalize”

his/her life is disturbed, he opined, since no one wants a sex
of fender living in their nei ghborhood.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH recalled that the attorney generals from 20
or so states were concerned and devi sed | anguage that would work
in all states and that would help the public and would curb a

sex offender’s ability to chat on-line. This bill acts to help
protect the sex offender as well as to inform parents and police
of activities. He related that the intent of the bill is to

require sex offenders to register their e-nmail addresses and if
they do not do so the sex offender can be prosecuted.

CHAIR RAMRAS inquired as to what the penalty is for not
conplying with the requirement to register within one working
day.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH answered that not registering an address or
an electronic address would result in the sex offender being
charged with a class A m sdeneanor subject to one year in jail
with a mninmumof serving 35 days in jail.

CHAI R RAMRAS opined that a significant portion of sex offenders

are on probationary status. He maintained that it is difficult
for sex offenders to find a place to |ive.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, speaking as one of the bill's joint
pri me sponsors, concurred.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH acknow edged t hat point.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked whether this standard is too rigid, since the

sex offender is likely also serving on probationary status. He
stated that his goal is not to allow “sex offenders to hide in
the community.” He noted that his line of questioning is wth

respect to those sex offenders who are attenpting to re-enter
soci ety and conply with sex offender registry requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH relayed his understanding that this bill
mrrors existing |anguage. He noted that currently, sex
of fenders nust provide witten notice of a change in residence
by the next working day to the Alaska state trooper post or
muni ci pal police departnent. This bill wuld extend that
requirenent to changes in an electronic mail address, instant
nmessagi ng address, or other Internet communication identifier.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to page 3, line 10, in
proposed AS 12.63.010(c), and expressed a willingness to offer
an amendnent to change the reporting requirenment to five days.

1: 20: 42 PM

LAUREN RICE, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), stated that the departnent
currently perforns physical address changes in one business day.
In response to Representative Ranras, M. Rice explained that
typically, the sex offender would call the sex offender registry
to advise the office that his/her address changed and woul d fax
or mail in the updated address information. She explained that
if the address change is mailed in that the notice of the new
physi cal address change would need to be postnmarked within one
busi ness day of the change.

CHAIR RAMRAS inquired as to the requirenents for changes to an
el ectronic mail address, instant nessaging address, and other
| nternet comrunication identifier. He opined it would be the
sanme standard for those addresses.

M5. RICE noted her agreenent.

1: 23: 54 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2008



KATHRYN MONFREDA, Chief, Crimnal Records and Identification
Bureau, Division of Statew de Services, Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS), related that part of her duties is to nmanage the
sex offender registry. In response to Chair Ranras, M.
Monfreda explained that there has not been a problem with the
requi renent for a one-day reporting deadline. She stated that
in addition to Ms. Rice s testinony, another way to report the
change of residence is for the sex offender to appear in person
at the registry office in Anchorage, an Alaska State Trooper

post, or a Village Public Safety Oficer Post (VPSO). She
explained that is the typical way that sex offenders notify the
state of changes in their status. She stated that the DPS

anticipates that adding a requirenent for reporting an Internet
identifier would be sinply a matter of changing the form to
i nclude space for the sex offender to report his/her e-mai
address and any |Internet identifiers. She opined that the
notification process would happen in the sane way as the sex
of fender currently notifies the DPS of his/her physical address.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG inquired as to whether nmany sex
of fenders report changes past the 24-hour deadli ne.

M5. MONFREDA said it is hard to pinpoint that type of
statistics. She stated that sex offenders who intend to be
conpliant seem to nmake every effort to neet that deadline. She
clarified that the requirenent is to conply within one business
day so if the address change occurs on the weekend it is
required to be reported on Monday. She surm sed that the DCL
could better advise the commttee of any arrests for non-
conpl i ance of t he current sex of f ender registration
requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the formrequires the sex
offender to report the date the person noved, and if so, that
i mposition mght have self-incrimnation, Fifth Amendnent
i mplications.

M5. MONFREDA answered that the sex offender registration
reporting form has a space for the date the formis signed and
not the date of the sex offender’s residence change.

1:28: 16 PM
CHAI R RAMRAS noted that the requirenent in the Adam Walsh Child
Protection and Safety Act allows for a three-day reporting

requirenent. He inquired as to why the Alaska statutes differ
fromfederal |aw

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2008



M5. MONFREDA recalled that the Alaska statutes originally had a
nore lenient requirenent. However, sex offenders were not
reporting at all so the departnment narrowed the deadline. She
related that the federal definition of “imrediately” has cone to
be known as three days for sex offenders and m ssing persons.
In response to a request by Representative Guenberg, M.
Monfreda offered to furnish the commttee with specific | anguage
fromthe Adam Wal sh Child Protection and Safety Act.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH offered that if a sex offender is using a
conputer to change an address, that he/she has the nmeans by
which to correct the address i medi ately.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES, in response to Chair Ranras, pointed out
that when a person changes his/her job, he/she would typically
obtain a new e-mail address, and that other reasons for changing
a provider also routinely happen.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH, in response to Chair Ranras, stated that
every e-mail address nust be registered.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred to pr oposed AS
12.63.010(b) (1) (l), which requires that each electronic nai
addr ess, i nst ant messagi ng  address, and ot her | nt er net

comuni cation identifier be registered.
1:32:49 PM

PAYTON MEREDI TH, Detective, Fairbanks Police Departnent (FPD),
City of Fairbanks, stated that the FPD is also a nenber of the
Al aska Internet Crines Against Children Task Force. He offered
the Fairbanks Police Departnment’s support for HB 278. He
relayed that his duties include the investigation of possession
and distribution of child pornography and distribution within
the Fairbanks area. The cases are serious cases, he opined. He
further opined that these crines are the nobst heinous crines
that he has ever seen in his life. Many of the people he
investigates ultimately are found to be currently registered sex
of fenders. The registry generally is inposed as a condition of
bail, he stated. One of the nobst inportant provisions in HB 278
as it pertains to his job is that the sex offenders would be
required to provide current e-mail and Internet information. He
offered that the recidivism rates for sex offenders are quite
high and the child pornography recidivismrates are the sane as
for pedophili a.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2008



MR. MEREDI TH suggested that perhaps specifying exact |nternet
Protocol (1P) addresses assigned to them by the Internet service
providers. For exanple, if a person rents a cable nodemthat is
static, the person is assigned an |IP address for the computer
and conput er/ nodem He offered that one way that sex offenders
are caught trading child pornography is through the I[P
addresses. He opined that if the investigator had access to the
|P addresses that it wuld aid them in conducting the
i nvesti gati on.

MR. MEREDI TH offered that his experience is that sex offenders
can work out the details with their probation officers when they
wish to relocate to another state. He concluded that FPD
supports HB 278.

1: 38: 23 PM

RON TIDLER, Detective Sergeant, Cyber Crimes Unit, Anchorage
Police Departnent (APD), Minicipality of Anchorage (MJA), stated
that he is the supervisor of the Cyber Crines Unit and is the
current commander of the Al aska Internet Crinmes Against Children

Task Force. He offered that the federal Adam Walsh Child
Protection and Safety Act requires that sex offenders nust
report any address changes wthin three working days. He

concluded with APD s support for HB 278 as currently witten.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL inquired as to how the APD anticipates
the process of enforcing the reporting requirenents.

MR. TIDLER stated that currently APD requires a sex offender to

regi ster his/her physical address. He offered that the person
woul d be charged in the event he/she does not report an address
change. However, he opined that once the person conplies and
reports his/her current residential address, that the charges
are generally dropped. He <characterized the departnent’s
efforts as desiring to gain conpliance rather than to prosecute
sex offenders. He offered his understanding that due to the

felony nature of the sex offender crines that sex offender would
general ly be brought before a magistrate.

CHAI R RAMRAS acknow edged the problem of w despread predator
behavior on the Internet and offered his hope that additional
funds could be allocated to the apprehension efforts.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to the |anguage “other |Internet

communi cation identifier” that appears in several places in
HB 278 and inquired as to what those “identifiers” mght entail.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH explained that sever al comuni cat i ons
mechani snms avail able and that are frequently used by high school
teens and that each person is able to obtain several nonikers.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to whether an identifier would
be a “Facebook” or “MSpace” identifier and would not include
| ogi ns for bank accounts or shoppi ng.

MR. TIDLER acknow edged that the bill would target the type of
identifiers such as “Facebook or MSpace identifiers” and to

al so prepare for future changes in technol ogy. He further
of fered his understanding that the “other Internet comrunication
identifiers” would probably enconpass all logins in which a

person transmts information to the public on the Internet.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM offered her belief that sex offenders
do not have the sanme rights or freedons as |aw abiding citizens
receive since the sex offender has taken actions and nade
choices that have led to consequences of adhering to sex
of fender registration. Wile she related her understanding that
the timng mght not be convenient, that regardless of how
i nconvenient it mght seem that the sex offender registry is a
consequence.

CHAI R RAMRAS pointed out that a broad spectrum of crinmes exist

that require sex offender registry. He opined that 75 percent
of the people on the list have commtted the worst types of
crines. However, he expressed concern about sweeping up the
other 25 percent that have conmmtted crines that fall into a

different standard of conduct.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES offered that sonetinmes logins require a
soci al security nunber.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pondered whether the IP address would be
sufficient. He related his wunderstanding that the tracking
woul d happen using the | P address.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH answered that the |egal drafter advises that
bank accounts are business accounts and do not include the login
i dentification.

CHAI R RAMRAS offered that the conmttee is reviewing the bill to
identify any unintended consequences.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM recal | ed an overview by Agent Flint who
related that conpanies are not required to keep a |og. She
opined that the I P address mght not provide investigators wth
enough i nformation.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL inquired as to the value of the IP
address and whether the login for chat room accounts and
“MySpace” is the identifier that is nost valuable to
i nvesti gat ors.

[Chair Ranras turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Dahl strom]

MR. TIDLER suggested inserting a definition for “lInternet
identifier.” He noted that Arizona has a definition that it
nmeans, “any electronic e-nmil address, instant nessage, chat,

soci al networking, or other simlar Internet comrunication nane,
but does not include social security nunbers (SSN), dates of
birth, or personal identification nunbers (PIN). He opined that
inserting a definition mght nake conmttee nenbers nore
confortable than just using the IP

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nentioned that he is aware that he has an
| P address, but he offered that if he were asked he could not
provi de the address.

MR. TIDLER offered that the IP address is the address provided
by the Internet service provider and is registered to a specific
conput er and subscri ber.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM offered that the Internet provider can
al so provide that information to the subscriber.

1: 55: 55 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), offered her
understanding that the bill drafters of HB 278 did not intend to
include PIN or login identification and the inportance of having
the intent stated for the record. She related her understandi ng
that those types of comrunications are not with the world in
general so that is the distinction.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL questioned whether the term “lInternet

communi cation identifier” should be made plural and whether the
term shoul d be defi ned.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2008



M5. CARPENETI explained that the bill drafters use singular, but

that it also includes the plural. She offered that people have
many addresses and that the I|anguage wll capture multiple
i nst ances.

CHAIR RAMRAS inquired as to whether to prohibit access for sex
of fenders from being able to access Internet places such as
“MySpace” altogether in the same way that they are precluded
from school zones. He inquired as to whether it would be
possible to exclude sex offenders from access to places
predators frequent.

1: 59: 32 PM

M5. CARPENETI offered that such restrictions mght raise
concerns about First Amendnent rights, though she noted that
persons on the sex offender registry do not have the sane
breadth of rights. It mght take sonme research, she opined

She pointed out that the practicality of enforcing such
requi renents mght pose problens since conputers are avail able
in public libraries and stores.

CHAI R RAMRAS posed a scenario in which a sex offender registers,
but imediately enters sites such as “MSpace” and chat wth
chi | dren.

M5. CARPENETI noted that statutes prohibit online enticenent of
mnors so once a sex offender enters those sites that they are
subj ect to apprehension and arrest.

MR, TIDLER stated that statistically 40 to 80 percent of
of fenders view ng i mages on the Internet also have inappropriate
contact wth children. He offered that one area that is being
considered as a condition of probation is to ban sex offenders

from Internet use or from using conputers altogether. He
recalled one instance in which a sex offender continued to
traffic pornography, however, it took nine nonths to build a
case to prove his trafficking in child pornography. In response

to Chair Ranras, M. Tidler stated that even though it my be
difficult to enforce laws that many people voluntarily conply
with | aws. However, it is inportant to have the laws in place
such that when people violate the law, they are subject to
prosecuti on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL offered that he is still unclear about
the use of identifiers in the bill. He surmsed that an |IP

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2008



address is one part of an identifier. However, the places that
a sex offender mght visit on the Internet are specific sites.

M5. CARPENETI answered that the DPS has broad regulatory power
under sex offender registration statutes and she opined that it
woul d be possible that the term “identifiers” could be defined
in regul ation.

CHAIR RAVMRAS offered his concern that sex offenders could
regi ster and then use the conputer to access and peruse sites.

M5. MONFREDA answered that using the IP address is not a bad
i dea. However, she offered that a nother who is nonitoring her
child would not know the I P address of the person contacting her
child, but she will know the identifier. She acknow edged t hat
it could be difficult to interpret. However, she pointed out
that since the technol ogy changes so rapidly, it is difficult to
predict what mght be an identifier. She opined that the goa
is to help law enforcenent track the sex offender who 1is
visiting specific sites.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL surm sed that |aw enforcenent is |ooking
for the IP address to identify who and where the person is and
the other identifiers are the location of an image that is
easily identified with the individual.

MS. MONFREDA surnised that |IP addresses would include an address
so that | aw enforcenent could check to see what sites the person
vi sited.

CHAIR RAMRAS inquired as to whether the legislature can have a
sex offender requirenent for soneone who has an Internet
identifier, sonmeone who has a “handle.” He said that he would
like to protect Alaskans since predators are hanging out on the
Internet, such that people would know the person is a sex
of f ender .

2:10: 32 PM

ELI ZABETH QUTEN, Staff to Representative Bob Buch, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, expl ai ned that the way that an “lnternet
communi cation identifier” would work under the bill is that for
a “MySpace” page or for a “Facebook” page, the person sign ups
and creates a handle. She noted that sex offenders using a
handl e can communicate with a nultitude of people on-line. She
expl ained that the intent of this bill is to allow a parent or a

police officer to be able to use those handles to identify sex

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2008



of f ender s. If the parent views the child conmunicating with a
specific handle, the parent can check the sex offender registry
to ensure that the child is not comrunicating with a known sex
of f ender.

CHAI R RAMRAS offered that the burden is on the parents rather
than to put the onus on the sex offender to disclose that he/she
is a sex offender. Thus, he opined, it would nake HB 278 a
stronger bill as a proactive piece of legislation rather than a
reactive approach. He surmised that it mght not be legal to do
so, but that is the approach he would Iike to see in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH characterized that approach as a good idea,
but he said that type of identification isn't within the scope
of HB 278. He expressed that the intent of HB 278 is to provide
police and parents with a tool to protect children.

2:13: 09 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS suggested inserting such an enforcenent nethodol ogy
to strengthen the bill would place a proactive elenment into
HB 278.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that currently the sex offender
registry identifies the person, but that HB 278 would identify
where the person is and where he/she is going. He said he would
like clarification regarding the identifiers.

CHAI R RAMRAS expressed interest in having the onus on the sex
offender to identify his/her handle to reflect that he/she is a
sex of fender.

[ REPRESENTATI VE = FAI RCLOUGH, later in the neeting, during
di scussion of another bill, opined that the police should have
conplete access to sex offenders’ |P addresses and should be
able to track the history of all of their Internet sites.]

[HB 278, Version E, was held over.]

HB 333 - COVPUTER PERSONS REPORT CHI LD PORNOGRAPHY

2:17: 03 PM
CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would be

HOUSE BILL NO 333, "An Act relating to the reporting of child
por nogr aphy. "

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2008



2:18: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  ANNA  FAI RCLOUGH, Alaska State Legislature,
sponsor, thanked the conmmttee for its proactive interest in
conbating child pornography and in holding sexual predators

account abl e. She related that statistics show that child
por nography generates approximately $3 billion annually. Thus,
people are spending nore than $8.2 nillion every day. She

explained that HB 333 would add individuals providing conputer
Internet, cellular telephone and related services to the list of
individuals who are required to report finding inmages of
unl awful exploitation of a minor. She offered that one of her
constituents repairs conmputers and discovered child pornography
on conputers sent in for repair. She surm sed that sone
conputer repair services do not report the pornography since the
conputers belong to their custonmers. This bill would |evel the
playing field by ensuring that all businesses report any child
por nogr aphy.

CHAIR RAMVRAS referred to page 1, line 11, to “shall inmmediately
report” and inquired as to what burden "shall” would place on a
person who does not report child pornography.

2:22: 07 PM

RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Deputy Conmander, “A’ Detachnent,
Division of Alaska State Troopers (AST), Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS), stated that “shall” generally neans by the nost
i medi ate neans available so if the person had access to a
tel ephone would be required to notify law enforcenent of the
di scovery of child pornography.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to whether the provisions in
HB 333 woul d be useful to | aw enforcenent.

LI EUTENANT DIAL offered his wunderstanding that sone people
believe that releasing the information would represent a
liability to the conpany or personal liability. Thus, this bil
woul d be hel pful since it will offer them protection. He said
he thought that it would increase the nunber of people who would
report these types of crinmes without first checking with an
at t or ney. Thus, it would benefit law enforcenent in dealing
with this problem

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nquired as to how enforcenent would be

able to determne who violated this law in instances in which a
person is working for a conmpany that processes photos.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2008



LI EUTENANT DI AL answered that the DPS mght not know that
i nformation. He opined that the DPS would use this bill as a
tool to gather information and not as a neans to prosecute those
that aren't conplying with the |aw. He explained that the bil
could help speed the process of obtaining information from
conpani es since the DPS can point to the statute as a specific
requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG inquired as to whether the conpany
woul d be prosecut ed.

LI EUTENANT DIAL surmsed that if DPS knew that a conpany had
know edge of the requirement and were still refusing to furnish
the child pornography that the DPS would work with the DOL to
determ ne whether a | egal case could be made.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nquired as to whether each picture or
filmconstitutes a violation.

LI EUTENANT DIAL surmised that the violation would be the
knowl edge of evidence of child pornography would constitute one
failure to report.

2:26: 17 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS, after first determning that no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 333.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES of fered her support for HB 333.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated that the statistics that she
previously provided cane from the January 2007, KTUU report by
Angel a Unruh. She later provided a comment regarding a bill
that was heard earlier in the neeting.

2:27:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 333 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 333 was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HB 354 - HARD- TO PLACE CHI LD SUBSI DY/ CH LD SUPPORT

2:29:37 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 13, 2008



CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 354, "An Act relating to subsidies for a hard-to-
pl ace child; relating to crimnal sanctions for unlawful
di sclosure of confidential infornmation pertaining to a child;
relating to child support orders in child-in-need-of-aid and
del i nquency proceedings; and providing for an effective date."
[ Before the commttee was CSHB 354( HES). ]

2:30: 27 PM

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of the sponsor, Representative
Coghill, explained that the |egislation was brought forth by the

Ofice of Children's Services (OCS), the Departnment of Health
and Social Services (DHSS), the Departnent of Law (DCOL), and a
private famly l|law practice in Fairbanks, Al aska. She rel ated
that the firm had a client who turned 18, had lived with his
not her and step-father for 18 years and wanted to be adopted by
his step-father, but could not due to a conflict in |anguage.
She explained that proposed AS 25.23.050(a)(7) would allow a
person 18 years old to be adopted w thout notice or consent of
t he parent.

[Chair Ranras turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Dahl strom]

M5. MOSS noted that two amendnents to the bill, suggested by the
DAL, would clean up HB 354. She referred to proposed | anguage
in Section 2, and said it is no longer necessary since the
proposed changes to Section 1 deleted the |anguage that required
the court to dispense with consent of a parent.

M5. MOSS, in response to Representative Guenberg, noted her
agreenent that proposed Section 3 is also being del eted.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked for <clarification whether all of
proposed Sections 2 and 3 of HB 354 woul d be del et ed.

V. MOSS referred to page 2, line 29, in proposed
AS 25.23.100(a), and advised that only the words, “Except as
provided in (k) of this section, at” are being deleted. She
further referred to page 3, line 3, and advised that the
| anguage “(7)” 1is also being deleted. She expl ained that
Section 4 is being revised to reflect that snmall nonthly sums
are not always necessary, such as in cases in which the child is
adopted at birth, with no evidence of physical or nental issues.
She stated that this language will allow the departnment to defer
a subsidy unless a physical or nental issue arose, but that the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2008



subsidy would be limted to foster care rates. Ms. Moss noted
that Section 5 would add | anguage to reflect that when requested
by the governor, that the Ofice of Public Advocacy (OPA) and
ot her agencies and would have to provide certain confidential

i nformation. This <clarifies that if a person obtains
information wunder that section of Jlaw and discloses that
i nformation, t hat the person could be convicted of a

m sdeneanor

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Representative Hol nes
offered that a violation would not be a class B m sdeneanor,
because the fine is only $500.

2:36: 01 PM

JAN RUTHERDALE, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Child
Protection Section, Cvil Division (Juneau), Departnent of Law
(DAL), answered that she thought that Representative G uenberg
is correct. She offered that she works in the civil section and
not the crimnal section of the DOL.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opined that this is over an infraction
but is only up to $500.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that this bill has simlar
| anguage as in Title 28, since the fines are up to $500 and are
m sdemeanor fines.

M5. RUTHERDALE agreed that the fine is up to $500 and that it
constitutes a m sdeneanor

M5. MOSS referred to proposed Sections 6 and 9, which she
explained clarify that the child support services division is
aut hori zed to establish child support orders adm nistratively as
is the court. She noted that a proposed anendnent exists to
del ete proposed Section 7. She explained that subsection (a) is
unchanged, but that a proposed subsection (b), which is |anguage

from a bill that Representative Gara introduced, says that
nothing in this subsection can be construed as prohibiting a
civil action for negligence or wongful death if a child is

injured or dies while in custody of the state.
2:39: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nmade a notion to adopt Amendnent 1, which
read [original punctuation provided]:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2008



Page 4, lines 12-15:
Delete all material.

VB. MOSS referred to page 4, lines 12-15 in proposed
AS 47.10.960, and advised that Amendnment 1 would delete this
| anguage. She explained that it is unnecessary to say, *“Except
as provided in (b) of this section.” She noted that Section 8
was added to clarify that the state can be held liable for a
civil action for negligence or wongful death if a child is
injured or dies while in state custody.

There bei ng no objection, Arendrment 1 was adopt ed.
2:40: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nade a notion to adopt Amendnent 2, which
read [original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, line 29:

After “petition.”

Delete “Except as provided in (k) of this
section, at [AT]”

I nsert “At”

Page 3, line 3:

After “(6)”
Delete “(7)”

Page 3, lines 6-11
Delete all material

M5. MOSS explained that Anmendnent 2 would delete unnecessary
| anguage because in proposed Section 1 on page 2, line 13-15
| anguage was deleted that requires the court to dispense wth
parental consent since the child is 18 and no |onger would
require parental consent.

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

VICE CHAIR DAHLSTROM after first determning that no one else
wi shed to testify, advised that public testinmony on HB 354 was
previ ously cl osed.

2:42: 58 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS noved to report CSHB 354(HES), as anended, out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2008



fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 354(JUD) was
reported fromthe House Judiciary Standing Comrttee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 2:43 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2008



